CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Board of Education Meeting — Tuesday, June 6, 2017 at 6:30 p.m.
Kaufman Center, 1 Valley View Drive, Cortland NY

10.

11.
12,

CALL TO ORDER and PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMUNICATIONS and RECOGNITION:

a. Kudos Korner

b. Audience Participation — (speakers are asked to state their name and address and limit their comments to
two minutes).

¢. Board Committee Reports:
1.) BOE Audit Committee — Report on May 25, 2017 meeting

PRESENTATIONS:
a. What’s Happening at Randall School
b. What’s Happening at Barry School

CONSENT ITEMS:

Minutes of May 16, 2017 Regular Meeting

CSE/CPSE (Committee on Pre-school Special Education) Recommendations 2016-2017
CSE/CPSE (Committee on Pre-school Special Education) Recommendations 2017-18
Annual Cooperative Bidding Resolution

Approval of BOCES Agreements and Resolution:

1.) Equivalent of Attendance Program

2.) Employment Preparation Education Program

3.) Adult Continuing Education Resolution

4.) Authorized Signatures

f. Reasonable Assurance of Continued Employment

OLD BUSINESS:

NEW BUSINESS:
a. Accept Budget Vote / Election Final Results

b. Approval of Food Service Agreements
c. Acceptance of Internal Audit

oo e

PERSONNEL ACTION:

a. Approval of Personnel Resignations and Leaves

b. Approval of Non-Instructional Personnel Appointments

c. Approval of Administrative and Instructional Personnel Appointments

LEADERSHIP REPORTS:
a. Director of Business Services
b. Assistant Superintendent for Pupil and Personnel Services
1.)  Annual Youth Survey results
2.)  Proposed Narcan policy
c. Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction
d. Superintendent
1) 3™ Quarter Results

BOARD MEMBER ACTIVITIES
NEXT MEETING AGENDA REVIEW

EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT



CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Board of Education Special Meeting — Tuesday, May 16, 2017 at 8:30 p.m.
Kaufman Center, 1 Valley View Drive, Cortland NY

A Special Meeting of the Board of Education was held on Tuesday, May 16, 2017 at the Kaufman Center,
1Valley View Drive, Cortland, New York.

Present: Ms. Melissa Davis-Howard, Ms. Janet Griffin, Ms. Christine Gregory, Mr. David Lemon, Ms.
Judith Murphy, Mr. Peter Rogoff and Ms. Alane Van Donsel

Also Present: Mr. Michael Hoose, Superintendent; Ms. Judi Riley, Assistant Superintendent for Pupil and
Personnel Services; Ms. Kimberly Vile, Business Administrator; and Ms. Alicia Zupancic, Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
Ms. Davis-Howard called the meeting to order at 8:30 p.m. and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
Ms. Davis-Howard asked for a moment of silence in memory of Joshua Sherwood.

CONSENT ITEMS:
a. Minutes of May 9, 2017 Regular Meeting
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve the Consent
Item as presented.
Moved by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Mr. Rogoff. Discussion: None
Final Vote: Yes — 6, No — 0. Motion Carried.

OLD BUSINESS: There was no old business.

NEW BUSINESS:
a. Financial Reports: Treasurer’s Report, Trial Balance, Revenues, Intrafund Transfers, Appropriations,
Warrant, Claims Monthly Report — April 2017
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve Financial
Reports dated March 2017 as presented.
Moved by Ms. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Gregory. Discussion: Clarification of summary sheet
was requested.
Final Vote: Yes — 6, No — 0. Motion Carried.

Alane Van Donsel arrived at 8:50

b. Approval of Creation of a Position — Building Maintenance Worker
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve the Creation

of a Building Maintenance Worker Position as presented.
Moved by Mr. Lemon, seconded by Ms. Murphy. Discussion: Why is this position being
created? — to get people where they will be most successful.

Final Vote: Yes — 6, No — 0. Motion Carried.
Alane Van Donsel abstained

c. Approval of Change in Sport Level for Girls Tennis - JV to Modified
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve the Change

in Sport Level for Girls Tennis from JV to Modified as presented.
Moved by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Griffin. Discussion: None

Final Vote: Yes -7, No — 0. Motion Carried.

d. Approval of Combined Cortland Groton Marching Band for Spring 2017
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of schools to approve the combining

of Cortland and Groton marching bands for spring 2017.
Moved by Ms. Griffin, seconded by Mr. Lemon. Discussion: None

Final Vote: Yes -7, No — 0. Motion Carried.



Board of Education Meeting — May 16, 2017 Page 2

5.

PERSONNEL ACTION:
a. Approval of Personnel Resignations and Leaves
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve the
Resignations and Leaves as presented on the revised Resignations and Leaves Schedule 11.93,
Moved by Mr. Lemon, seconded by Ms. Murphy. Discussion: None

Final Vote: Yes —7, No - 0. Motion Carried.

b. Approval of Non-Instructional Personnel Appointments
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve the
appointments for Non-Instructional Personnel as presented on Schedule of Appointment 1214,
Moved by Ms, Griffin, seconded by Mr. Rogoff. Discussion: None
Final Vote: Yes — 7, No — 0. Motion Carried.

c. Approval of Administrative and Instructional Personnel Appointments
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, to approve the
appointments for Administrative and Instructional Personnel as presented on the revised Schedule
of Appointment 2460.
Moved by Ms. Murphy, seconded by Ms. Gregory. Discussion: None

Final Vote: Yes -7, No - 0. Motion Carried.

LEADERSHIP REPORTS:
a. Business Administrator
1.)  Final report for IT Audit at May Audit committee meeting
2.)  Met with Comptroller to discuss audit. It will be released early June.

b. Assistant Superintendent for Pupil and Personnel Services
1.)  Update on recruitment
2) Parker local focus review next week

c. Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction
1.) Mentor/Mentee program being revamped

d. Superintendent
1.)  Mr. Hoose was asked if there was any thought as to the staffing of the music department . He said
there will be a .5 cut.

BOARD MEMBER ACTIVITIES

Ms. Griffin shared the names of the teams that are scholar athletes.
NEXT MEETING AGENDA REVIEW - None

EXECUTIVE SESSION

In accordance with Public Officer’s Law Section 96, Subdivision 1, I would like to call for an Executive
Session at 9:18 p.m. to Discuss the medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular
person,

Moved by Ms, Griffin, seconded by Ms. Gregory. Discussion: None

Final Vote: Yes -7, No — 0, Motion Carried.

The Executive Session adjourned at 9:59 PM.
Moved by Ms. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Gregory. Discussion: None
Final Vote: Yes —7, No - 0. Motion Carried.



Board of Education Meeting — May 16, 2017 Page 3

10. CANVASSING OF VOTES
a. The 2017-18 Budget Results are as follows:

Proposition 1 Budget Preliminary Results: YES 399 NO 84

RESOLVED, That the Board of Education of the Cortland Enlarged City School District be
authorized to expend the sums set forth in the amount of $49,576,887 and to levy the necessary
tax therefore.

Proposition 2 Vehicle Lease/Purchase Preliminary Results: YES 389 NO_100

Shall the bond resolution adopted by the Board of Education of the Cortland
Enlarged City School District on March 21, 2017 authorizing the acquisition of
four (4) 66 passenger replacement school buses and one (1) 48 passenger with
capacity for up to three wheelchairs, including necessary furnishings, fixtures
and equipment, and the expenditure of a total sum not to exceed $630,000,
which is estimated to be the total maximum cost thereof, and further authorizing
the issuance of $630,000 serial bonds to pay the cost thereof; providing that the
sum of $630,000, or so much thereof as may be necessary, shall be raised by the
levy of a tax upon the taxable real property of such School District and collected
in annual installments as provided by Section 416 of the Education Law;
providing that, in anticipation of said tax, obligations of the School District,
including installment purchase contracts, may be issued; pledging the faith and
credit of said School District for the payment of the principal of and interest on
said bonds; determining that the period of probable usefulness thereof and
maximum maturity of the serial bonds therefore is five years; delegating the
power to authorize and sell bond anticipation notes and to fix the details of and
to sell serial bonds; containing an estoppel clause and providing for the
publication of an estoppel notice, be approved?

Proposition 3 Library Proposition Preliminary Results: YES 349 NO 141

Shall the Cortland Free Library tax previously approved by the voters of the District
be increased from the current $370,775 to $375,663 beginning July 1, 2017, to be
raised by a tax upon the taxable property of the District in each year for general
library purposes and to continue from year to year until modified or repealed by a
subsequent vote?
RESOLVED, that the Board of Education of the Cortland Enlarged City School District accepts the
budget vote , vehicle lease / purchase, and library proposition preliminary results as presented

above, and per the Tabulation Sheet, dated May 16, 2017, to be attached to this meeting’s minutes.
Moved by Ms. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Murphy. Discussion: None

Final Vote: Yes -7, No — 0. Motion Carried.



Board of Education Meeting — May 16, 2017 Page 4

b. Board of Education Election Results:

1A Janet Griffin

1B David Lemon

Write-in: Gerald Ruggerio
Write-in: Fred Cutia

Write-in: Daniel Quail

Write-in: Lisa Hoeschelle
Write-in: Regina DeMunn
Write-in: Travis er-Stramba
Write-in: Wayne Ford

Write-in: David Lemon

£
s
(=)}

B
(=
(=]

RESOLVED, by the Board of Education of the Cortland Enlarged City School District, Cortland,
New York, that Janet Griffin is hereby declared elected to a three-year term as a member of the
Board of Education of said School District, commencing July 1, 2017 and David Lemon is hereby
declared elected to serve as a member of the Board of Education of said School District
commencing May 16 — June 30, 2017 and to a three year term commencing July 1, 2017 as

presented above, and per the tabulation sheet dated May 16, 2017, to be attached to these minutes.
Moved by Ms. Van Donsel, seconded by Ms, Griffin. Discussion: None
Final Vote: Yes -7, No — 0. Motion Carried.

11. ADJOURNMENT
As there was no further business to discuss, Ms. Davis-Howard asked for a motion to adjourn the
meeting at 10:07 p.m.

Moved by Ms. Van Donsel, seconded by Ms. Griffin. Discussion: None
Final Vote: Yes -7, No - 0. Motion Carried.



Y4.d

Annual Cooperative Bidding Resolution Notification

Resolution:

The { &’ﬂﬁ_/vj Ep k}c% gA C(!}i Sdgd bﬁl_ﬂd’ (hereafter known as “School District’) agrees to participate in

2017-2018 (July 1, 201% — June 30, 2018) municipal cooperative bids for the commodities checked v below as
defined in various provisions of New York State General Municipal Law. The cooperative bids will be coordinated
by the Onondaga-Cortland-Madison BOCES to ensure maximization of savings to each respective participating
School District. Furthermore, that Deborah B. Ayers, Assistant Superintendent for Administration, Onondaga-
Cortland-Madison BOCES, be designated to advertise, receive, open and award on behalf of the participating
School District said bids and that the Board of Education of the BOCES reserves the right to reject any or all bids.
The School District is not obligated to purchase from the awarded vendors for any bulk products or services.

N athletic/physical education equipment & supplies
IX audio visual equipment

auditing services

automatic external defibrillators (AEDs)

building condition survey

building inspection services

cafeteria paper/small wares products
computer paper

computers, printers, software, etc.

contract transportation

ODD0ORR®OONO

curtain inspection & treatment
Al custodial supplies & equipment
[ digital printers & supplies

[] elevator maintenance and inspection service

[ fire extinguisher maintenance and inspection service

[J fire system maintenance and inspection service

m food/milk/ice cream/bread/produce

(] HvAC maintenance/inspection services

Other bids as identified during 2017-2018

#2 fuel oil, gasoline, kerosene & diesel fuel

IZ] medical/nursing supplies & equipment
[J musical instruments

D4 natural gas/electricity

@ paper and envelopes

[ refrigeration equipment service
[J school bus/automotive parts
E. scientific & graphing calculators
[] student accident insurance

M student agendas

m telecommunications

] textbooks

B trash liners

L] uniforms

[J water system treatment

[J welding supplies/gases

Iﬁ waste/recycling services

[(J wood floor/gym floor refinishing

Official Newspaper(s) [5 LT ) orAnon o

Yes No

Abstaining

Clerk of the Board of Education

Date of Resolution




Hel

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
(octun) fﬂja@d Ciky Sthet School District
and the

Onondaga-Cortland-Madison Board of Cooperative Education Services
Effective July 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018

EQUIVALENT OF ATTENDANCE PROGRAM

This agreement will remain in force unless a request is submitted by the school district
to terminate the agreement thirty (30) days from the date of notification.

The Onondaga-Cortland-Madison Board of Cooperative Educational Services agrees to
provide the Equivalent of Attendance Program for residents of the district who are:

(@) 18-20 years old and attend instruction at sites throughout the counties;
and

(b) attend the program as approved by the district’s E.O.A. designated
contact person.

The training is in the High School Equivalency Program, Basic Education Instruction,
English as a Second Language. This agreement will be null and void if the Onondaga-
Cortland-Madison BOCES fails to have the program approved by the New York State
Education Department. The billing for this program will be once a year. The amount of
billing shall be equal to the district’s E.O.A. contact hours at $6.00 per hour.

The BOCES shall assume responsibility for the attendance of the students and any
inaccuracies or penalties a District may suffer shall be paid by the Onondaga-Cortland-
Madison Board of Cooperative Educational Services.

President, BOCES Board of Education Date

President, Local Board of Education Date




DISTRICT NAME: _(octmg Snlteed (1 SeelbshD

E.O.A. Contact Person(s):

Name: Jud & |€t1

Address: | \/A“Pu\\/mw\\ri\lﬁ
Codllomdl S ST

Telephone: ___ (,07-758-4 100

Name:

Address:

Telephone:

If a district designates more than one contact person, please indicate
either the age and/or which classification of student the contact person
will be responsible for.

H:\Redhead\FORMS\New Year\EOA Contact Person.doc




e

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
00{Hand &ﬂarc‘gp JCI/'\I/ School District
and the

Onondaga-Cortland-Madison Board of Cooperative Education Services
Effective July 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018

EMPLOYMENT PREPARATION EDUCATION PROGRAM

This agreement will remain in force unless a request is submitted by the school
district to terminate the agreement thirty (30) days from the date of notification.

The Onondaga-Cortland-Madison Board of Cooperative Educational Services
agrees to provide the Employment Preparation Education program for residents
of the district who are twenty-one (21) years or older. The education includes
high school equivalency (Adult Basic Education, Adult Secondary Education,
Home Study, National External Diploma Program), Basic Education, Life Skills,
Occupational Training, Work Experience, and English as a Second Language.
This agreement will be null and void if the OCM BOCES fails to have the program
approved by the New York State Education Department.

President, BOCES Board of Education Date

President, Local Board of Education Date




L{‘é'?)

ONONDAGA-CORTLAND-MADISON BOCES
Adult and Continuing Education Resolution

RESOLVED that the Board of Education of the CM Hand N (arap,i (i /\f
Central School District authorizes the Onondaga-Cortland-Madison Board of Cooperatlve
Education Services to operate Cooperative Adult and Continuing Education programs at no

charge to the district; without affecting their right to operate district programs.

WHEREAS school districts are authorized to provide Adult and Continuing Education
programs in a consortium administered by their BOCES, and

WHEREAS the number of enrollees in certain programs in a single school district does
not warrant the operation of those programs, and

WHEREAS there is ample evidence that there is a sufficient demand among adults in the
supervisory district to support self-sustaining instructional programs,

THEREFORE let it be resolved that the Oh‘ﬂm £n larﬁ;ﬂi C i/\'] Central
School District authorizes the Onondaga-Cortland-Madison BOCES to operate a self-sustaining
Adult and Continuing Education Comprehensive Program, during the 2017-2018 school year at
no charge to the district.

/%1,/4‘11-1 ///ZZ>c ~ f/c/u-'

Auth rized S/gna?'uZé Stiperintendent " Date




Yed
OCMBOCES ‘3*%(

Committed to Your Success

Deborah B. Ayers

Assistant Superintendent for Administration
Phone: (315) 433-2614

Fax: (315) 431-8444
dayers@ocmboces.org

Memo

To:  Business Administrators
From: Deborah Ayers
Re:  Authorized Signatures — July 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018

Date: May 11, 2017

Each year after the contract for BOCES services has been signed and approved;
we receive requests for additional services from various departments within the component
districts.

When authorized individuals sign the adjustment to services contract it is assumed by OCM
BOCES that the services have been budgeted and authorized by the component district Board of
Education.

In addition to the Superintendent, please provide the names of other individuals
who are authorized by your district to request adjustments to service contracts.

After the Superintendent has signed, please return this form to me. Thank you.

Name(s): A Q;&@(

Superintendent Signature: / M .,{,L/Zw/( %""

School District: /\ 0(1’\0\/\1} Eh\ﬂilmml Cl/ll Sched nshe O




CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOQOL DISTRICT
C or tland 1 Valley View Drive
Cortland, New York 13045
Eniarged City School District
Kimberly Vile Business Office
Business Administrator (607) 758-4100
kvile@cortlandschools.org Fax: (607) 758-4109

To:  Mr. Michael Hoose, Superintendent

From: Kimberly A. Vile, Business Administrator KAV
Date: May 30, 2017

Re: Reasonable Assurance

In 1944, the New York State Legislature enacted what is now known as the Unemployment Insurance Law as
an economic insurance buffer for workers who lost their jobs as a result of a layoff, The statute provided that a
laid off employee who lost his or her job through no fault of his or her own would receive an income for a
limited period of time to assist in the transitional period between jobs.

Today the law has been liberalized to the extent that employees who are suspended or even discharged for just
cause may still be eligible for this insurance benefit. One of the steps we can take to guard against paying
employees during the summer vacation is to notify district employees of an intent to continue their employment
for the following school year. Should we not do so, they may be eligible for unemployment insurance during
the summer vacation period.

Therefore, it is recommended that the Board of Education adopt the following resolution.

RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby authorizes the Superintendent of Schools to issue reasonable
assurance letters to any individual employed by the District in the 2016-17 who is reasonably expected to return
to work for the District in the 2017-18 school year.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you.

cc: Board of Education



xspeieutd LL0ZAIIBAUONDSI3 £L10ZNOILOTTINSIOP\SIWO JANSIH SHVVH

L L uowan piAeq :Ui-ajlAA
Z Z p104 SUuAepp :ul-ajLIM
L L equiei)g-196A1) siAel] ‘ul-a3LIAA
L L uunpeq euibay :ul-sjlIA
L I 9jjoyosa0H Bsi :UI-aUIM
L i enp jslueq :ul-ajluMm
L L BN pald ul-ajlM
I 2 SJINDIN [9BYIIN “Ul-SJLA
L L 0112166y plesan :ul-ajuM
€0V L |69 0L 6V gie uowsT piaeg gl
sLy 9 189 €S 1] 9¢¢ UM jauer vi
Iviol sayuasqy | TIouIA 0L “LSIa | IIAD6°L1SIa | (V) ALID L 1SIa uoneonp3 jo pieog
evi ¢ [8¢C 8¢ Sl 09 ON
[4*]% 6 |SP [A 4 14 80¢ S3A Areaqi g "doad
(1] 8 rAN £ 3 L€ 141 194 4 ON
L6€ 8 |69 14 0s 9¢¢c S3A sng :Z# ‘doid
88 ¢l 114 L 6¢€ ON
LoV 8 |¥S GS 2S zee S3A Jabpng :}# "doid
Iviol m sajuesqy | TIOWIA 0} "1SIA | 3TAD 6°LSIA ALID | "1SI1Q 3JOA
©Q

£10Z ‘9L AelN - NOLLD3 13 QAVOE TOOHOS TVANNY

LOIR41SIA TOOHIS ALID GIOUVYINT ANV1LHOD
S17NS3 TVNId - 133HS NOLLVINgVLl

RO



> CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
( - OX tlail (‘1 1 Valley View Drive
Cortland, New York 13045
Eniarg ty School D I
Kimberly Vile Business Office
Business Administrator (607) 758-4100
kvile@cortlandschools.org Fax: (607) 758-4109

To:  Mr. Michaels Hoose, Superintendent

From: Kimberly A. Vile, Business Administrator KAV
Date: May 30, 2017

Re:  Food Service Agreements

It is the recommendation of the Business Office to approve the food service agreements as presented.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you.

cC: Board of Education



CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOOD SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Agreement entered into this 1st day of September 2017 by and between the Cortland
Enlarged City School District, party of the first part, hereinafter referred to as the District, and the
Onondaga-Cortland-Madison BOCES, party of the second part, hereinafter referred to as BOCES,
do hereby mutually agree that:

1. The District, as the Sponsoring Agency, agrees to continue service to BOCES, as a
recipient agency, for the 2017-18 program period September 2017 through June 2018.

2. This relationship is renewable each school year by mutual agreement.

3. Cortland will review applicants for free and reduced price meals. BOCES is responsible
for distributing and collecting applications.

4. Food is transported via a BOCES courier for all participating programs with pick up from
the Cortland Jr.-Sr. High School at an agreed upon time.

5. BOCES guarantees the District payment for any documented losses as a result of meal
sales projected at the end of May 2018 with a final payment, if any, in June 2018.

6. This Agreement may be terminated by either party during the school year with 30 days
notice in writing.

7. The District will perform administrative functions normally handled by the Sponsoring
Agency, such as, but not limited to, ordering food and milk, filing claims, filing required
reports, and conducting hearings.

8. The District will apply for the health department permit and obtain the necessary
signatures to operate, the cost of the health department permit will be included on your
itemized bill.

Clarification by site location:

McEvoy :
The District will provide meals and labor and any other services normally provided other
recipient agencies except as otherwise stipulated in this agreement.

BOCES will pay a monthly administrative surcharge of $110.00 for ten months, September
through June, to the District.

BOCES agrees to pay for any special services rendered by the Food Service Helper above the
normal 6 %2 hours per day at the rate of $15.00 per hour. (rate subject to change)

BOCES agrees to provide all services, except meals and direct labor. This includes ensuring
that service and holding equipment allows the program to be in compliance with Cortland
County Health Department regulations.

Alternative & 7 Valleys
BOCES will track meal counts and account status for these students.

BOCES agrees to serve all meals that are prepared and delivered for student consumption.



Both parties recognize the purpose of a school lunch program and pledge their support to serve
the children nutritious meals in accordance with current rules and regulations. This includes
ensuring that service and holding equipment allows the program to be in compliance with Cortland
County Health Department regulations.

FOR: CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT:

Chief School Officer Date

FOR: ONONDAGA-CORTLAND-MADISON BOCES:

Chief School Officer Date



CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOOD SERVICE AGREEMENT

This agreement entered into this 1st day of September 2017 by and between the Cortland
Enlarged City School District, party of the first part, hereinafter referred to as the District, and the
St. Mary's School, party of the second part, hereinafter referred to as St. Mary's, do hereby
mutually agree that:

1. The District, as the Sponsoring Agency, agrees to continue service to St. Mary's, as a
recipient agency, for the 2017-18 program period September 2017 through June 2018.

2.  This Agreement is renewable each school year with the mutual consent of both parties
to the Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon the filing
of 60 days prior notice in writing to the other party.

3. (a) The District agrees to perform administrative functions normally conducted by a
Sponsoring Agency such as, but not limited to, ordering food and milk, filing
claims, filing required reports, conducting hearings and such other administrative
tasks not otherwise expected in this Agreement.

b) The District agrees to prepare and deliver lunches to St. Mary's on each school
day that the District's schools are in session. The District further agrees to provide
one (1) Food Service Helper employee at the point of service, the costs of said
employee to be borne by the District. The menu will be identical to that published
for service at the public elementary schools.

4. St. Mary's, in consideration of lunches and other services provided by the District,
agrees to:

(a) Pay a monthly administrative charge of $110.00 for ten months, September
through June, to the District to cover expenses incurred by the District, such
as, Administrative Personal Services, postage, advertising, supplies and
materials. An additional fee associated with the Nutrikids POS located at St.
Mary’s will be billed annually.

(b) Repair, maintain, or replace equipment necessary to the operation of the
program, equipment to mean having a unit value of $50.00 or more for
replacement purposes.

(c) Assign Government Donated Food allocation to the District.

(d) The release of all funds (revenues) to the District that are generated by the
direct operation of the School Lunch Program.

(e) Guarantee the District payment for documented losses sustained as a result
of operating the Lunch Program for St. Mary's. The District's Business
Official will provide quarterly financial status reports to the Chief School
Officer at St. Mary's. Documented losses, if any, will be paid by St. Mary's
during the month of June of the current school year.

() Agrees to reimburse the District for time worked by the District's on site
employee and authorized by St. Mary's beyond the hours per day required
under 4 (b) above at the rate of $15.00 per hour. (rate subject to change)



(9) Maintain the food serving and dining areas in a sanitary condition (custodial
services) acceptable at all times to the Cortland County Health Department.

5. The District agrees that the monthly administrative charge in item 4 (a) of this
agreement will be offset by any net profit generated as shown in the quarterly financial
report, item 4 (e), up to a maximum of $1,000 of the current school year. Credit will
not carry over from one school year to the next.

6. The District agrees that any net profit over and above that used in item 5 will be added
to the inventory credit before demanding payment as provided for in item 4 (e).

7. Any dispute between the parties to this Agreement shall first be presented to the Chief
School Officers of St. Mary's and the District for resolution; if the dispute cannot be
resolved at this level, the matter shall be presented to the District's Board of Education
for final settlement.

Both parties recognize the intent and purpose of a Child Nutrition Program and pledge their
support to serve the children nutritious meals at a reasonable charge in accordance with existing
Federal, State and local regulations. St. Mary's is responsible for obtaining a separate Cortland
County Health Department permit for any functions that occur outside of the school lunch
program.

FOR: CORTLAND ENLARGED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT:

Chief School Officer Date

FOR: ST. MARY'S SCHOOL:

Chief School Officer Date



B

CORTLAND ENLARGED
CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

INTERNAL AUDIT

RISK ASSESSMENT UPDATE
AND
ANNUAL TESTWORK

April 27, 2017



Cortland Enlarged City School District

__ _ TABLEOFCONTENTS R
Page
COVER LETTER 1
METHODOLOGY 2-4
RISK REGISTER AS OF APRIL 27, 2017 5-8
PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 9-23
CURRENT YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 24

RESULTS OF ANNUAL TEST WORK
ANNUAL TESTWORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  25-31

ADDITIONAL TESTWORK PERFORMED 32-36



DArcangelo&Co.u

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

200 E. Garden St., PO.Box 4300, Rome, N.Y. 13442-4300
315-336-9220 Fax: 315-336-0836

Board of Education and Audit Committee
Cortland Enlarged City School District

We have been engaged to assist the Cortland Enlarged City School District in performing
an initial risk assessment and annual test work for the year ended June 30, 2017 as
required by Chapter 263 of the Laws of New York State. The purpose of our engagement
is to assist the district in determining the level of risk and adequacy of controls in the
various functional processes within the School District. A complete description of the
methodology used in performing the risk assessment is included in the subsequent pages
of this report. We have also performed test work in areas agreed to by the audit
committee as required. The results of that test work have been included in this report.

The risk assessment and testwork was performed in accordance with professional and
ethical standards contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States and the general standards of the AICPA’s Code of
Professional Conduct. These standards are required by the Regulations of the
Commissioner of Education.

The engagement to perform the initial risk assessment and test work is part of an ongoing
internal audit function. The results of the risk assessment and test work performed have
been discussed with management of the Cortland Enlarged City School District and are
the overall responsibility of the School District.

This report is intended solely for the informational purposes in order to develop a plan to
identify and manage the School District’s risks. This report and all information used to
compile the report is the property of Cortland Enlarged City School District.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve you as internal auditors and thank the individuals
in your School District for their cooperation.

8] \&mﬂa ~Co.,LLP
April 27, 2017

Rome, New York

Mid-Hudson « Oneida » Rome » Syracuse » Utica » Westchester
www.darcangelo.com D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
1



Cortland Enlarged City School District

METHODOLOGY -

The internal audit process for Cortland Enlarged City School District has been established in
accordance with Chapter 263 of the Laws of New York State to provide an independent,
objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve the organization's
operations. It helps the District accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance
processes.

Defining Audit Universe

The first step leading to the development of the School District’s Risk Register is to define the
audit universe. The School District’s audit universe encompasses both financial and non-
financial functions and have been categorized into the following business units:

Governance
Information Technology
Budget

Financial Reporting
Payroll/Human Resources
Accounts Payable

State Aid

Attendance

Capital Projects

Special Aid Programs
School Lunch

Fixed Assets
Transportation

Cash Receipts/Billing
Extraclassroom

VVVVVVVVVVVVVVY

Weighting of Business Units

The risk that each of the above business unit’s pose on the School District is unique. The
weighting of business units attempts to account for the relative measure of importance between
business units and the impact on the overall risk level. A weighting factor was derived by
evaluating each business unit based on the following categories:

> Size of Unit - Based on total revenue/expenditures processed by business unit band/or
volume of transactions.

» Complexity of Transactions - Based on the nature of transactions processed.

» Public Exposure - Based on the potential of business unit to harm the School District’s
reputation within the community.

» Time Since Last Audit - Based on the last date that internal audit procedures have been
performed.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
2



Cortland Enlarged City School District

— == e e R e R

_METHODOLOGY _

» Compliance with laws and Regulations - Based on laws and regulations that direct the

business unit’s activities.

Defining Business Unit Processes

Business units have been broken out into key processes that will be the basis of the risk register.
The objective is to identify and prioritize processes that pose the greatest potential risk and
liability to the School District.

Categories of Risk

Risk will be assessed for each business unit process in two categories:

Inherent Risk - Inherent risk measures the potential for objectives not being attained at the
desired level before applying the assessment of the internal control process.

Control Risk - Control risk measures the adequacy of internal controls designed to reduce the
inherent risk within the process. Each process will be assessed for control risk utilizing the
concepts of the COSO model. This model was developed in 1992 by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and has been adopted as the
generally accepted framework for internal control and is widely recognized as the definitive
standard against which organizations measure the effectiveness of their systems of internal
control. The COSO model focuses on the following components:

>

Control Environment - The Control Environment sets the tone of an organization,
influencing the control consciousness of its employees. It is the foundation for all other
components of internal control, providing discipline and structure.

Risk Assessment- Risk Assessment is the identification and analysis of relevant risks to
the achievement of the School District’s objectives, forming a basis for determining how
the risks should be managed.

Control Activities - Control Activities are the policies and procedures that help ensure
management directives are carried out. Control activities include a range of activities
such as approvals, authorizations, verifications, reconciliations, security of assets, and
segregations of duties.

Information and Communication - Information must be identified, documented, and
communicated in a form that enables employees to carry out their responsibilities.
Monitoring - Monitoring is a process that assesses the quality of an internal control
system’s performance over time.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
3



Cortland Enlarged City School District

METHODOLOGY

Assessing a Risk Level

The assessment of risk will be based on four levels of severity:

Low Low likelihood of significant impact on School District objectives.

Moderate  Moderate likelihood of significant impact on School District objectives.

High High likelihood of significant impact on School District objectives.

Severe Extreme likelihood of a catastrophic impact on School District objectives.
Risk Appetite

Risk Appetite broadly sets the level of risk that the Board of Education deems acceptable. The
Board of Education has set a moderate level of risk appetite for the purpose of this initial risk
assessment. Those processes that have been assessed a level of control risk greater than the risk
appetite are to be included in the School District’s long range internal audit plan over a four year

period. The level of risk appetite is designated with a blue line on the School District’s Risk
Register on Pages 5 through 8.

Managing the Risk
The options of the School District in managing its risks can be summarized as follows:

» Treat - Implement accounting and operational controls.
» Terminate - End the activity.

» Transfer - Outsource activity or obtain insurance.

» Tolerate - Accept risk and monitor.

Audit Plan

An audit plan must be implemented by the Audit Committee based upon the identified risks, risk
appetite, and how the risk is to be managed. Risks that are identified that are above the
acceptable risk appetite of the Board of Education should be a priority in the audit plan.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
4



¢ a8eg
d17 “0) oppsuvoty,q

uswobeue aoueleg pund
WBisIoAQ [eoUBUIY
Bupoday fenuuy| Buptoday jedueuly

Buijunclay [esBUSS)

i S0 DS NS

Bupoday Ajlyluon

N SJUaWpPUBLY

Guuojuop
1e8png
aoueljdwon/uoneluasaid

AN AISANES IS IS s
>

Juswdojeaad

SAS S 1S

Aianooay Jejsesi()

Aunoeg uopesddy snoaue(jeasiin an

Aunoas uogeonddy [erueu)d ABojouysa] uonewou|

5SS S S

AUNJ2ag/8oUBWIBACLD)

S SIS
DS

juswebeuep XSy

ainponis [euoneziuebiQ

3oUBWIBNDD)
Buuoyuopw

SN S
S S

sa.npanoid pue Adiod |eieuag)

,.,35.__8_\,_

3yepd ) pdwmssassy ysty

L10Z ‘LT 1AV JO SV YALSIOTA ST |

PISIQ 10048 1 paSsvpug puvpL0)




9 38eq
d717 “0D 01a8uvaay,q

Vi s3o08
N pIY 1500 SS89x3
N fenden/ply Buipiing

piv 9118

A Py uogeuodsues |
A piy oiseg

N Bupoyuop/6ussanold |eseuss)

SIS S NSNS

Va uopeys|upwpyY yse) Aned
o~ Va N Buissa0.d wewhed
N sainjpuedx3 Jo uonedo|y

sjuawannbay Buntodey
dv/buiseyaing

S OSS
>

N sainypuadx] 1snu| asoding eleaud
N 2 i N $S800id JUaLWBINI0.d
| N welsAg "O'd BpISINO sjuswhed
A weishs 'O'd

seakojdw3 jo uopeuiua | /Buu

SN S
>

A asuepually aakojdwg

> S

Va Ve uonesiunupy Jeueg ealojdw3y
HH/tolhed
Ve N N uopesnsiuwpy sako|dw3 jeigua)

N N sainypuadx3 jo uoyedo|y

A Va e saefojdw3 0] sjuswied
| * - _
|

S59UDI21D4] "o i07 - ubip S | DO | UBIH [B18Asg
| |

| |

! !

Dz e Iy 0 s __ Hum sERUIsNg
_ |

11L0D | ySie quaIat | ”

aepdn Eon_ama? e
LI07 ‘LT B4dY JO SV YALSIOII JISNA i

1051 100498 G1D paSivjuy puORI0)



L 98eg
d77 ©0) oppduvoay,q

A Kiojuanuy
N gouey|dwo) S}assy paxid

|esodsiq pue uopisinbay

>

uoneayusA Aupaibya
S9SELdINg pue AoJuaAu|
yaun- [oOYdS
wolsAg pue 9jpA) sojes

JUeWasINGUISY lels B |ejepe4

SOS S OSSN S
>

aoue|dwo)

NS SIS

Buuoyuop pue Bupioday
A swabeueyy ysed pIv [e123dg
§]S0D 8|qemo|Y

uoped||ddy el

uopadwo)
Buuojuop syo8(oad (eyde)

Buiuue|q

N ejeq eduBULIOUSd uepms
. ajuepuany
eouepueny Juepms Gunpes)

NI ES PSS S Sy
NS IS NN

hS

epd[) JUSWSSAISSY SRy

LT0T ‘LT 1Y O SV YALSIDOT SR

wLusIq j00yds 411D padivpug puopio)




g a8eq
d'T7 “0D opa3uvday,a

N SBUOUBALY

e Buiseyoing pue sainjjpuadxy
wiooissejaenxsy

oA sydienay yseD pue ysed

[elouas)

>

N sidiasey j0 Bunsod/uonos)iod
Vs suofeuoq

N SUOJSSEIUOY) PUR SUOISSIWPY

6ujng

= safioe Jo asn /sidieasy ysed

uoRIn 10LsId 40 1N
A predIpe

‘3 xe | Auadold [eay

A Aunodeg pue asueusUE Sapi|ioed

N aouedwo) |puuosiad
uopeuodsuesj

N juswabeuepy %SiY

SSOS SIS S S NN N NN NN
>

N aoueuajuRW 18914

= il

1epd|) JUdWSSISSY NSTY

LT0Z ‘LT BdVY 4O SV YALSIOTA JSTH

w1S1q 100Y0S 31D paivrug puopiod




Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In order to assist the School District in managing its risks efficiently and effectively, we have
summarized certain risks based on our professional judgment. For each of the risk areas
highlighted, we have included a recommendation for the School District to consider in
addressing the specific risk.

Governance-General Policy and Procedures

Inherent Risk- Severe
Control Risk- High
Risk Appetite- Moderate

Accounting Procedures Manual

Prior Year Observation

Although the District has documented in limited circumstances certain procedures within the
business office, the District does not have a formalized accounting procedures manual or an
inventory of its internal controls.

Prior Year Risk

Without documented accounting procedures or an inventory of internal controls, employees have
no formal guidance as to their specific role in the accounting process as well as their specific role
in the internal control process for the District. An effective internal control system relies heavily
on a formal communication system that sets the expectations of its employees and establishes
their role in the process. This lack of formal communication increases the risk of internal
controls not being followed as intended and an employee not knowing what is expected of them.
It prohibits the ability to effectively train new employees, evaluate performance, and improve on
existing procedures or internal control.

Prior Year Recommendation

We recommend that the District develop a comprehensive accounting procedures manual that is
separate from Board Policy. Such a procedures manual would ensure that procedures are
consistently applied throughout the District. It would effectively notify all accounting personnel
of their duties and improve lines of communication. In developing the accounting procedures
manual, the District should consider the following elements:

> Written job descriptions for each accounting position. These descriptions should be
provided to each employee and serve as a guideline for hiring and evaluating personnel.
The District already has many of these job descriptions documented.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
9




Cortland Enlarged City School District

_ PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

» Appropriate descriptions of all financial policies, accounting procedures, internal controls
over payroll, cash disbursements, and cash receipt cycles.

> A segregation of duties matrix for each of the main transaction cycles that provides an
overview of the role of each position in the internal control process.

» A list of standard forms and system generated reports used in the School with a detailed
explanation of their purpose and preparation.

The accounting procedures manual should be updated annually and should be distributed to all
accounting personnel and other appropriate personnel. It should evolve to meet the needs of the
District and should provide an accurate reflection of the current system of accounting.

Current Year Status:

The District is in agreement with this recommendation and is continuing the process of
documenting the processes in all relevant areas.

Governance-General Policy and Procedures

Inherent Risk- Severe
Control Risk- High
Risk Appetite- Moderate

Conflict of Interest Statements

Prior Year Observation

Currently neither the Board of Education nor management is required to sign an annual conflict
of interest statement. Although not required by law, a conflict of interest statement is considered
a best practice for purposes of transparency. The conflict of interest statement would disclose
any relationship, contract, or transaction that could have an appearance of conflict with board
members or key employee’s decision.

Prior Year Risk

The District, unknowingly, could have a contractual relationship that could be deemed a conflict
of interest for either a board member or key employee.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
10



Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Prior Year Recommendation

We recommend the District require an annual conflict of interest statement be documented from
its board members and key employees to disclose any potential appearance of a conflict of
interest.

Current Year Status:

The district has contracted with Erie 1 BOCES to develop a conflict of interest policy and
procedures part of an overall board policy update.

Governance-General Policy and Procedures

Inherent Risk- Severe
Control Risk- High
Risk Appetite- Moderate

Procurement Policy
Prior Year Observation

GML 104(b) requires that the District adopt a written procurement policy with procedures
governing procurement of goods and services that are not subject to competitive bidding
requirements. The policy and its procedures must provide for the use of written or verbal or other
competitive procurement methods, procedures for determining which procurement method to
use, circumstances when the solicitation of proposals or quotes will be waived, and the
documentation standards for each method of procurement. In addition, it is important that a
procurement policy address and provide guidance for emergency purchases, sole source
purchases, and procurement of professional services and the documentation needed to support all
purchasing decisions.

We noted that the district has updated this policy through Erie 1 BOCES, however the new
version does not define the thresholds needed for compliance with General Municipal Law

104(b).

Prior Year Recommendation

The Board should review and update the District’s procurement policy to ensure that it is in
compliance with GML 104(b). The policy should include detailed and clear guidance on the
documentation required for proof of compliance. Documentation may include memoranda,
written quotation forms, telephone logs (for verbal quotes), RFPs, and copies of Federal, State,
county contracts or other government contracts for which “piggybacking” is permitted. If a

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
11




Cortland Enlarged City School District

"PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

contract is awarded to an offer other than the lowest dollar offer, the policy must require that
there be justification and documentation, setting forth the reasons the award.

Current Year Status:

The District is currently working with Erie 1 BOCES to revise all policies. This policy

when revised should be reviewed to ensure it contains the necessary language associated
with GLM 104(b).

Governance-General Policy and Procedures

Inherent Risk- Severe
Control Risk- High
Risk Appetite- Moderate

Internal Claims Auditor Procedures

Prior Year Observation

We noted though our audit that there is no policy in place pertaining to the claims auditor
function. In addition there are no documented procedures or list of items that the board has

determined the claims auditor to review prior to approving payments for purchases.

We also noted through inquiry that the claims auditor is not rcviewing contract or bidding
documentation for purchases to determine compliance with applicable laws.

Prior Year Recommendation
We recommend the board develop a checklist of procedures to be performed on all claims. The
procedures should include review of documentation necessary for compliance with applicable

laws, including but not limited to General Municipal Law 103 and 104(b).

Current Year Status:

The District utilizes outside contractor for internal claims audit services. The district
should monitor the actions of this claims auditor and ensure they are following district
polices as set forth by the Board of Education as well as utilizing a checklist for items
reviewed during the claims audit process. Also on an annual basis claims auditor should
meet in person with the board to go over at least a summary of annual findings.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
12



Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Information Technology - Governance/Security

Inherent Risk — High
Control Risk — High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Policies/Data Protection

Prior Year Observation

The District does not have an Acceptable use policy for Cloud-based offerings used for
instructional and student/teacher collaboration. In addition, evaluations of cloud-based offerings
have not been performed to ensure that controls are available to ensure that personal, private, and
sensitive information are not be posted or stored within these Cloud-based offerings.

Prior Year Risk

The New York State Comptroller states that comprehensive IT security policies and
procedures should be in place to protect personal, private, and sensitive information (PPSI)
and on mobile computing devices, including laptops, smartphones, tablets and portable media
devices. As cloud based solutions are used by teachers and students in the District, there is
the risk of sensitive and private information being uploaded to the cloud where it is not
protected.

Without an “Information Security Breach and Notification” policy #8635, identified as the
policy legally required for all school districts, the District will not be in compliance with
New York State law. School districts must disclose any breach of data to affected New York
residents.

Prior Year Recommendation

1.

Develop and adopt the “Use of and Access to Personal, Private, and Sensitive Information”
policy. Define PPSI; explain the reasons for collecting PPSI; and describe specific
procedures for the use, access to, storage, and disposal of PPSI involved in normal school
activities. Staff should acknowledge that they have read, accept and understand the policy.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
13




Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

—_— e .

2. Evaluate all Cloud-based offerings used by the District and assess whether sufficient security
provisioning (i.e., setting up users which are permitted access), audit trails and content
monitoring controls have been established.

Prior Year Status

The District currently has not deployed cloud based offerings but is planning to initiate this
technology in the near future. The District will establish an initiative to cover the items included
in the prior year’s recommendation.

Current Year Status

Cloud based offerings have not been offered as of this time (Office 365). Therefore, the need to
establish policies at this time as not required.

Information Technology — Governance/Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Vendor Management

Prior Year Observation

The District is reliant on third parties to operate critical applications in use at their facilities. In
order to assess the cffectiveness of the controls within these externally hosted operations, it is
industry best-practice for these hosting vendors to undergo an independent control evaluation
such as the AICPA’s Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16 (SSAE 16)
and Attestation Standards Section 101 (AT Section 101) in order to provide visibility within
these service providers® control design. The SSAE 16 replaced the SAS 70 report on June 15,
2011.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
14




Cortland Enlarged City School District

S s ———— e e e

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

— .

The District utilizes the nVision IS application to handle financial processing (i.e., Payroll,
vendor check disbursements and maintaining the General Ledger) and IEP Direct to handle its
Special Education program. These applications are hosted by BOCES (Central NY RIC) along
with providing the District’s Internet access and website. BOCES has complete responsibility for
managing the application, network connectivity, system operations and security. BOCES has not
provided a service auditor’s assurance report.

Prior Year Risk

The manner in which security over the district's data, hosted at these 3rd party vendors facilities,
will not be completely understood or independently validated.

Current Year Status

The District is the process of reviewing the BOCES SSAE 16 service auditor’s assurance audit
report and will have the Superintendent raise any issues to BOCES if there are any issues.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP

15



Cortlund Enlarged City School District

__PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

Information Technology — Governance/Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Data Classification

Prior Year Observation

The District has not developed a data classification standard to classify the risk level of data
resources used within the District. Establishment of a data classification standard provides the
basis for ensuring that proper levels of controls have been implemented based on the
classification of the data.

Risk
Individual users will not have the awareness needed to preserve the overall system security.

Prior Year Recommendation

A security risk assessment should be established to classify the risk relating to all critical District
data. This risk assessment would then be used as the basis of ensuring all District data is
properly secured with the required level of separation of duties and controls.

Current Year Status

The District plans to allocate time during the next year to complete the data classification project.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
16



Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Information Technology-Disaster Recovery

Inherent Risk - Severe
Control Risk - High

Risk Appetite - Moderate
Contingency Plan

Updated Observation

Currently, with the exception of the Phone system, the District currently does not have offsite
disaster recovery capabilities to recover the network and systems that are hosted by the district in
the event that the High School is rendered inoperable. Plans are being established to locate the
offsite disaster recovery site at the Smith Elementary School which will include a SAN to
provide the necessary storage to recover from a failure. In the event that internet access was lost,
District staff would relocate to BOCES to process payroll and financials.

The District has not conducted a Business Impact Analysis (BIA) to determine the timeframes in
which they can operate without having access to key instructional and district business
applications and overall IT Infrastructure services (e.g., Internet Access, Access to email). In
addition, the Business Impact Analysis would determine the amount of data that the District’s
departments and instructional areas are willing to lose in the event of an IT system failure. These
results from the Business Impact Analysis would determine whether data backup strategies are
designed to meet the District requirements and the extent in which an alternate location is needed
to operate the District’s IT systems in the event the primary server room was inoperable.

Currently, there is not an alternate location that has been identified to operate the District’s IT
systems in the event the primary server room was inoperable. In the event that internet access
was lost, District staff would relocate to BOCES to process payroll and financials.

Prior Year Risk
Without a formal contingency plan that has been tested, there is risk that upon the loss or

interruption of the IT function, data could be irretricvable and the School District’s processing
capability diminished.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
17




Cortland Enlarged City School District

J _PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

Prior Year Recommendation

I. We recommend the School District develop a Business Impact Analysis (BIA) which
identifies Recovery Time Objectives (RTO) and Recovery Point Objectives (RPO) for all
application systems and key [T services.

2. Based on the completion of the BIA, alternate processing locations should be established,
a disaster recovery plan created and a process to test the plan.

Current Year Status and Updated Recommendations

The district is in the middle of creating a Disaster Recovery plan to ensure power, phone,
network connectivity to internet and data servers are available if the Core Switch at the
JSHS was to become available. The Smith Elementary School has been designated as the
disaster Recovery location. The District needs to assess alternative network design
solutions to enable the other District buildings to be able to connect to the proposed offsite
disaster recovery site to allow for access to BOCES and the internet.

Information Technology- Security

Inherent Risk - Severe
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Network Security Monitoring

Prior Year Observation

BOCES provide Internet access for the District in which District traffic is routed through an edge
router and a District firewall which is managed and configured by BOCES. A service agreement
does not exist between the District and BOCES which defines the network security monitoring
responsibilities of BOCES. Based on the IT Director’s discussions with BOCES during the audit,
BOCES indicated they do not perform any network security monitoring on behalf of the District.

Prior Year Risk
Cyber-attacks attempting to access District resources would not be detected.

Prior Year Recommendation

The District should request that BOCES establish a log server to route the Firewall logs and the
District should establish an internal network security monitoring function.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
18



Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Current Year Status
As part of the District planned deployment of a new firewall with the District network,

which will provide an additional layer of network security, the District will also implement
their own network security monitoring.

Information Technology- Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Network Security

Prior Year Observation

The District’s wireless network is established which provides connectivity to the District’s
internal network which uses WPA-2 security and require computers to have their MAC address
defined to the a Radius Server. However, a wireless access point was established at the
Kaufiman for visitors to use which allows access to the District’s internal network.

The District plans to establish a guest wireless network which has no access to the District’s
internal network as part of the network upgrade.

Prior Year Risk
Attacks can occur to resources which are not properly protected within the District’s internal
network.

Current Year Status

A guest wireless has been deployed. The district is also purchasing a new Aruba Wifi
network which will include a guest wireless.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
19




Cortland Enlarged City School District

| _PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

L

Information Technology- Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Network Security

Prior Year Observation

The District has IT services which are accessible from the internet which includes its email and
the Student Information System, Infinite Campus. The District has not performed a network
level vulnerability assessment to ensure that these internet accessible services do not have any
critical vulnerabilities.

Prior Year Risk

Cyberattacks can occur to internct accessible 1T resources.

Current Year Status

Since email is the only critical external facing service hosted at the district, the need to
perform annual network vulnerability assessment is not as critical. During the Annual
Testwork, the audit team utilized licensed vulnerability assessment tools to disclose 7
medium security risk vulnerabilities which the District plans to remediate.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
20



Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Pavroll/HR-General Employvee Administration

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Segregation of Duties- Payroll/Human Resources

Prior Year Observation:

It was noted that the payroll department enters employee’s salary and rates of pay. Segregation
of duties could be strengthened by having the human resource department enter the employee’s
salary into the nVision system. In addition new salaries and pay rates are not properly reviewed
and recalculated prior to the new fiscal year.

Prior Year Recommendation:

Currently, the human resource department is meeting with the district’s new employees and
going over required documentation. This documentation is contained within a checklist form
and ensures that the district has all required documentation for employees. In addition when
employees are hired they are given a proposed salary amount that is calculated by administration
prior to being hired. In order to properly segregate payroll controls, human resource department
should enter the new employee’s salary into the financial software. Payroll should simply be
entering the employees payroll related deductions.

We also recommend that before the start of each fiscal year that the human resource department
review all upcoming increases in pay rates and salaries. These rates would be recalculated and
traced to supporting documentation such as contracts or agreements with employees’. The
payroll department should then review and recalculate the pay rates and salaries entered by the
human resource department as a second check. This would also ensure that individuals whom
have attained a longevity status would have the proper longevity paid. The human resource
department would be best for this step as they have control over the personnel files and all
pertinent information for each employee. We also recommend that after the recalculation of new
salaries and rates that performance of this control be documented by initialing or signing a report
showing the rates.

Current Year Status:
There has been no change in district procedures and processes with regards to this

comment. The district should review their process and update to include the above
recommendation to mitigate any potential risks of deviations or incorrect data.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
21




Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Payroll/HR-General Employee Administration

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Exit Interview Checklist

Prior Year Observation:

We noted that the district does not have a proper exit conference with employee’s leaving the
service of the district. We also noted with regards to health insurance that the human resource
department does not handle the add, drops, or changes in coverage. This process is currently
being done by the payroll department.

Prior Year Recommendation:

When employees leave the district due to retirement, resignation, or termination; the district does
not hold a proper exit conference, nor have they implemented a checklist of all needed
documentation items. We recommend that the district develop an exit conference checklist for
the human resource department to complete when an employee leaves the district. This checklist
should contain information regarding any retirement planning, health insurance including
COBRA coverage, and payment for retirement or insurance. In addition this checklist will
ensure that any employee leaving the district is properly informed of any benefits that are legally
appropriated to them. It will also serve as notice that employees are no longer employed with the
district thus eliminating the possibility of non-employees receiving district employee benefits.

We also recommend that the human resource department take control of the district’s health
insurance process. The human resource department is best suited to administer the health
insurance process as they deal with employees on a more personnel level. The Human resource
department should also be monitoring the health insurance bill to ensure that any non-district
employees are removed from the insurance roster. Pertaining to the exit conference checklist the
human resource department would be the first to know of any employee leaving the district,
therefore could change the eligible health insurance coverage for exiting employees. Also any
changes in coverage should be done by the human resource department as they are in control of
the employee’s personnel files, which is where all change documents should be properly kept.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
22




Cortland Enlarged City School District

PRIOR YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Current Year Status:

Upon an employee leaving the district, a letter informing them of their rights to an exit
conference as well as information regarding health insurance is sent out. This meeting is
not mandatory and the employee chooses whether they wish to attend or not. The District
currently does not have an approved exit conference checklist. In addition the district has
not implemented the recommendation regarding Human Resource and the insurance
function. This is still being handled by the payroll office.

Payroll/HR Payments to Employees

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Certification of Payroll

Prior Year Observation:

We noted that the district’s payroll system has an override function for paycheck amounts. This
allows the individual processing payroll to override the set payroll amount each paycheck. An
override report is not currently being produced for review by the individual certifying the
payroll. We also noted the certification of payroll could be strengthened.

Prior Year Recommendation:

The district has implemented controls where a change report is produced prior to each payroll
run that denotes any change in pay amounts between the current payroll and the prior payroll
run.

Payroll certification could be strengthened by the individual certifying the payroll by randomly
selecting 3 to 5% of employees each payroll and tracing their pay rates back to their agreed to
salary amount or pay rate. This would ensure employees are being properly paid in accordance
with their salary notice or contract rate. These individuals tested should be documented to
prepare an effective audit trail.

Current Year Status:

The district has not implemented the change in procedure whereby randomly selected
employees are being traced back to their salary notice to ensure be paid properly. The
district has implemented the change in policy where a payroll change/comparison report is
reviewed by management outside of the payroll process to ensure any changes out of the
ordinary are reviewed and followed up on.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
23




Cortland Enlarged City School District

= s

_____ CURRENT YEAR RISKS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

Special Aid-Compliance

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Uniform Guidance Procurement Policies
Observation:

On December 26, 2014 the Office of Management and Budget’s Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, more commonly
referred to as the “Uniform Guidance,” became effective for all Federal awards, whether the funds
are provided directly from a Federal agency or passed-through another state or local agency.

The District currently has effective procedural controls in place over the management of Federal
awards as concluded through the testing of grant expenditures. However, key changes under the
Uniform Guidance expanded the rules regarding the documentation of internal controls over
Federal Awards to require that they be documented in writing in the District’s policies and that
management should evaluate and document the results of ongoing monitoring to identify internal
control issues. The written internal controls should specifically address each of the twelve (12)
compliance requirements of the Federal Award Programs.

The Uniform Guidance has allowed a two (2) fiscal year implementation period from the date
Uniform Guidance came into effect. This deferment of implementation should be done through
Board resolution per the guidance through June 30, 2017. Updated: As of May 17, 2017 the
OMB has granted an additional year for implementation of this policy.

Risgk:
The District will not be in compliance with Federal Grant regulations

Recommendation:

The District should document policies and procedures in accordance with the new Uniform

Guidance. The new procurement policies and procedures should be in place for the June 30, 2019
fiscal year grants.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
24



Cortland Enlarged City School District

RESULTS OF ANNUAL TESTWORK



Cortland Enlarged City School District

_ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

S — — e P — ——— e e ———d

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP was requested by the Cortland Enlarged City School District Board of
Education and the Audit Committee to conduct procedures related to the Information
Technology function as required in accordance with Chapter 263 of the laws of New York State
for annual test work. The following are the observations and recommendations based on the test
work performed:

Information Technology — Application Security

Inherent Risk — High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite — Moderate

Security Access Provisioning and Recertification — nVision Application

Observation

The District’s processes include the assignment of user security entitlements to application
systems based on an individual’s job requirements. The access is generally assigned either
through predefined security roles or customizing the access of users with unique access
requirements based on their individual job function.

The provisioning process for nVision involves an email to the Business Official from the user’s
manager in the form of a free form text based email, detailing the access required for a new user,
or the change required for a specific individual to perform specific tasks, either based on new job
requirements or due to an inability to access specific functions or data. Predefined roles have not
been established to enable a uniform, simple access setup. To complete the provisioning process
the Business Official sends the request to BOCES to apply the security changes.

Based on compliance testing performed during the audit individual users were granted access
that extends beyond the requirements of their job function. In addition, there were BOCES
personnel which had privilege access that extends beyond their security administration function.

Most hiring and/or transfers take place within the summer recess period. During this time,
access to the application is reviewed. However, this review is limited to whether the user is still
an active employee, and does not extend to a full review of access privileges to determine
whether they remain appropriate and commensurate with the user’s access requirements.

It is an industry best practice to perform a recertification of user access on a periodic basis, and
for it to include the details of the user’s access. The District needs to enhance the process.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
25



Cortland Enlarged City School District

[ ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Risk

There is no assurance that District users are assigned the appropriate level of access.
Transferring employees may also retain their access from previous responsibilities.

Recommendation

1. For each job category, establish a series of roles and determine the associated access
requirements for each one. Distribute it to users and create an access request form
containing the roles for the requestors to choose from when making a formal request.

2. Enhance the recertification process to include a detailed review of each user’s access
privileges.

Information Technology — Application Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk — High
Risk Appetite — Moderate

Security Access Provisioning and Recertification — IEP Direct Application
Observation

The District’s processes include the assignment of user security entitlements to application
systems based on an individual’s job requirements. The access is generally assigned either
through predefined security roles or customizing the access of users with unique access
requirements based on their individual job function.

The provisioning process for IEP Direct involves an email to the CSE Chair from the user’s
manager in the form of a free form text based email, detailing the access required for a new user,
or the change required for a specific individual to perform specific tasks, either based on new job
requirements or due to an inability to access specific functions or data. Predefined roles were
initially established to enable a uniform, simple access setup. However, compliance testing
based on a sample review conducted with the CSE Chair disclosed that the limited number of
roles used required individual users access privileges which are not required for their job
function.

Additionally, there are outside entities and providers, such as preschools and head start
programs, whose access is administered by BOCES. The Cortland CSE Chair was informed that
reviews of access administered by BOCES is performed by BOCES, but she does not receive
copies of the reviews performed and is unsure of the frequency and level of detail of the review.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
26



Cortland Enlarged City School District

| ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

The Cortland CSE Chair performs an access review annually, but the review thus far has been
limited to whether users listed remain within their positions, and did not include a full review of
access privileges to determine whether they remain appropriate and commensurate with the
user’s access requirements.

It is an industry best practice to perform a recertification of user access on a periodic basis, and
for it to include the details of the user’s access.

Risk

There is no assurance that District users and outside providers are assigned the appropriate level
of access. Transferring employees may also retain their access from previous responsibilities.

Outdated roles increase the probability of users being assigned access beyond what is required
for their job responsibilities.

Recommendation

1. Prepare a list of job categories and identify the access needs for each. Perform a thorough
review of each uscr within the roles and identify any instances where roles provide excessive
access. Identify instances in which new roles need to be created and reassign users to the
new roles as necessary. Document each role and create an access request form containing the
roles for requestors to choose from when making a formal request.

2. Enhance the recertification process to include a detailed review of each user’s access
privileges. Instruct BOCES to do the same and request copies of their reviews performed.

Information Technology — Application Security

Inherent Risk — High
Control Risk  High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Application Logon Security - NutriKids

Observation

Logon security is achieved by establishing processes to prevent the unauthorized takeover of a
user’s ID. The controls used to prevent this occurrence are comprised of effective password

construction controls, provisions to lock IDs after successive failed logon attempts and an overall
monitoring process.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
27



Cortland Enlarged City School District

[ ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The following logon security issues were identified within the Nutri Kids application:

o Audit trails of security changes are not present in the system

e Passwords are hard coded by BOCES in the system and consist of the last 4 digits of each
user’s personal phone number, which makes them subject to easy compromise

» Passwords do not expire

e Accounts do not lock out for a period of time after repeated invalid logon attempts to
prevent unlimited repeated attempts

Risk

The District will not identify attempts to access application systems, and weak, unchanged
passwords increase risk of a user ID being compromised.

Recommendation

Request that the vendor implement the ability of the District to set logon and password controls
in the system, including password length, complexity, expiration, and account lockout. Also,
implement an audit trail to record all security related changes.

Information Technology — I'T Governance

Inherent Risk — High
Control Risk — High
Risk Appetite — Moderate

Records Retention of Student and Business Records
Observation

The State of New York has enacted a series of mandates for retention of student and business
data (titled ED-1), detailing requirements for numerous types of scenarios and the length of time
such records must be retained for both paper documents and electronic records. Formal policies
have not been enacted within the district, and specific retention and disposition schedules for
each category of data have not been established based on meeting the ED-1 requirements.

Risk

Records required by state regulators, courts, and other bodies may be unavailable, exposing the
school to legal action or adversely impacting current or former students or their families.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
28



Cortland Enlarged City School District

| ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

Recommendation

Obtain and review the New York State mandates. Enact a policy to adhere to these standards, at
a minimum. Appoint a records custodian to handle retention and disposition, and periodically
review retention for continued compliance. Monitor the regulations for any changes in
requirements going forward.

Information Technology — Network Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - Iigh
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Network Security Design
Observation

The District Internet access is through the BOCES Syracuse Regional Information Center which
is also used by all of the other Districts who use their services. BOCES has a firewall which
permits District designated external connections to BOCES hosted District systems and systems
that the District hosts within its internal network. The District does not have a firewall to prevent
other school districts inside the BOCES network from attempting to access District internal IPs.
In addition, district requires a firewall to secure the services hosted at the District because based
on the review of the BOCES firewall rules during the audit it was identified that granular firewall
rules have not been established ensure that only the required ports and services have been opened
to access District hosted services.

The District does not perform periodic vulnerability assessments of its District hosted email
which is reachable from the internet. During the audit, the audit team ran a licensed vulnerability
assessment tools against the Lotus Notes server hosted which disclosed seven (7) medium risk
security vulnerabilities.

Risk

The District will not be protected against other District attacks or attacks from the Internet.
Recommendations

Proceed as planned to install a firewall behind the District edge router.

Remediate the seven medium risk vulnerabilities identified on the Lotus Notes server.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
29



Cortland Enlarged City School District

ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS I

Information Technology — Network Security

Inherent Risk — High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite — Moderate

Security of IT Service Accounts

Observation

IT installations make use of service accounts to run automated, scheduled background tasks for
various purposes, including system maintenance, backups, administrative tasks, and other
important processes. The account is afforded the access necessary to perform these tasks, and it
is ofien extensive and sometimes all encompassing,.

These accounts are typically reserved for automated, non-interactive use to run background tasks
and are not intended for individual use during interactive sessions. We observed that these
accounts are not restricted from interactive logon and use.

Risk

Since these accounts need to be set-up to not lock and attacker could use a brute-force attack to
take over these accounts.

Recommendation

Set up service accounts to prevent interactive logon.
Information Technology — Network Security

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk - High
Risk Appetite -- Moderate

Computer Security
Observation

The District has deployed Deep Freeze on all of its computers except for the laptops used by the
Administration staff. Deep Freeze is a product used to allow the District to wipe out any changes

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
30



Cortland Enlarged City School District

| _ANNUAL TEST WORK OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS |

|
e declalA Sty iR M i J

made to a computer by restoring the previous day’s image each day. The approach of using
Deep Freeze was based on the understanding that district would be protected if a computer was
infiltrated or attacked by malware. However, Deep Freeze will not prevent a vulnerability from
being exploited which is due to the District not applying the monthly Microsoft security patches.

When District users surf the internet from inside the District network, reputation filtering of
these visited sites is performed by a web proxy. For the few district laptops that have been
issued to the Administration staff, when these laptops are taken outside of the District,
reputation filtering of websites visited will not occur.

Risk

Laptops used outside of the District will be subject to BOT attacks.

Computers used throughout the district will be subject to exploitation of security vulnerabilities,

Recommendations

As part of the new Aruba Wifi network, devices will be used with the Administration staff’s
laptops which will be set-up not work on public wifi and only allow a secure connection to the
District’s internal network.

Establish a security patching program which applies security patches at least on a quarterly basis.

Information Technology — Disaster Recovery

Inherent Risk - High
Control Risk  High
Risk Appetite - Moderate

Offsite Data Backup

The district performs offsite data backups of district data and email to the SAN located at the
Barry Elementary school which is performed manually by a member of the IT staff. Offsite
backups should occur on a daily basis and should be an automated process.

Risk

The District will potential lose data from the last 5 business days.

Recommendation

Establish an automated scheduled process to perform an offsite backup of district data on a daily
basis.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
31



Cortland Enlarged City School District

ADDITIONAL TESTWORK PERFORMED

Payroll/HR-General Employee Administration

Targeted Employee Payroll Analysis

Objective

The objective of this analysis was to determine that key administrative employees with the most
risk of management override were paid according to their contracted salary.

Procedures Performed and Outcome

We targeted six (6) high risk employees with access to the financial software or could have
access to the financial software. We recalculated all payroll payments made to the employee for
the period February 1, 2016 through December 1, 2016. We observed no instances where salary
paid represented a gross deviation from the contracts set forth by the District contracts.

Recommendation

No recommendation necessary based on the outcome of procedures performed.

Payroll/HR-General Employee Administration

Targeted Employee Same as Vendor

Objective

The objective of this test was to look at any payments made to targeted employees outside of
payroll, and ensure they appear reasonable. After any matches are found we investigate all
payments made and look into anything that appears to be suspicious.

Procedures Performed and Qutcome

We targeted six (6) high risk employees with access to the financial software or could have
access to the financial software. We then scanned the entire disbursements journal for payments
made to these individuals. All occurrences of payments made to these individuals were
reviewed. The payments were made up of contractual payments as well as mileage
reimbursements. All payments appeared reasonable.

Recommendations

No recommendation deemed necessary based on the outcome of procedures performed.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
32



Cortland Enlarged City School District

[ ADDITIONAL TESTWORK PERFORMED .

Benford’s Law Analysis

Objective

The objective of this analysis was to apply statistical reasoning to possibly identify potential
issues contained in the disbursement journal.

Background

Benford’s Law is a statistical anomaly that was first discovered by Simon Newcomb and then
further analyzed by Frank Benford. This law states that the odds of a number appearing at any
point within a number are predictable. For example, below is a chart containing the statistical
odds of any given number being the first digit of a larger number.

Digit 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 g8 |9
g/‘:)d“fo"‘mmga“s”)ig“ 301 | 176 | 125 | 97 79 | 67 58 51 |46

(http://intuitor.com/statistics/Benford's%20Law.html)

The odds of the number one being in the first position is 30.1%. By comparing a set of data to
these criteria we could identify areas to look into further.

Procedures Performed and Qutcome

By applying Benford’s Law to the Districts disbursement journal data for the period of February

1, 2016 through December 1, 2016, the following results were calculated for both the first digit
and second digit.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
33



Cortland Enlarged City School District

ADDITIONAL TESTWORK PERFORMED

| Cortland Benford's Law First Digit Analysis(Srapshot)

950 00

Number ol Checks
2

45000
400,00

150,00
300.00
250,00 I
20000
150,60 '
10000 :
50,00
0.00 _
100 200 300 400 500 6.60 7.60 800 900

First Digit

B ewecten [l ACTUAL

Results for I* Digit Test

The first digit Benford’s Law Analysis showed abnormal variances against the expected counts
for the first digits of 1 and 8. The number 1 was associated mainly with employee
reimbursements for clothing allowances, dental, and vision insurance. The number 8 was mainly
associated with payments for athletic events such as clock operators and referees.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
34




ADDITIONAL TESTWORK PERFORMED

= - i A TOfﬂa;; Ben};d's l;at:-Sc;cér;i bu;lt.A-nlaly-sis—[Sﬂ*a;e;l:ot]‘

480 00
40,00
4000
i
8 3,
é 253060

< 20 '-
E 20000
1504¢
120,

B _
459
04

040 146 ] 10 AR a00
Results for 2nd Digit Test

20 3% 40 58 6C
Secens Dight

B ececiec | acTut

In performing the second digit Benford’s law Analysis we saw an abnormally higher than
expected number of check amounts with the second digit of “0 and 5”. The second digit 0 can be
explained by a large number of even dollar checks for contractual and self-insurance payments.
For example, 100, 200, 500, 1,000. The number 5 is mainly associated with athletic event
payments as well as athletic dues and association fees.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
35




ADDITIONAL TESTWORK PERFORMED j

Duplicate Payment and Gap Detection Test:

Objective

To ensure that all payments made by the district are only made once, and that there is a logical
sequence of checks issued. In addition any check gaps can be adequately explained and not due
to fraud, error, or omission.

Procedures Performed

We obtained a check register for all funds for the time period of February 1, 2016 through
December 1, 2016. From this listing we extracted all payments made to the same vendor for the
same amount. From this sample we tested potential duplicates using professional judgment to
ensure they were for legitimate purchases or claims and not duplicate payments. We noted no
duplicate payments were made during the time period tested.

We also utilized this check listed to run a gap detection test, which pinpoints any gaps in the
logical sequence of check numbers. From this report we reviewed all gaps in the sequence to
ensure they were for legitimate reasons, such as voids or system limitations. We noted that all
check gaps were for system limitations and reasonable.

Recommendations

No recommendation deemed necessary based on the outcome of procedures performed.

D’Arcangelo & Co., LLP
36



DACERTVAR Aol Rt ot b FAR RN L BIRINE L RN SR E DAL R ITINE T IWE T iund L g Rt FANE ]

INTWINIOddV
NOSYId SALVA JAVI'] TVNIDIIO NOILLISOd AINIASEV 4O JAVIT

TINNOSYAd TYNOILINYLSNI-NON/TVNOLLONHLSNI

‘waunuioddy Kreuoneqold L10Z/0€/S0 L10Z/10/10 UEa) HayS eid
ALVA INTNINIOddV
NOSVTY FALLOASIA TVNIOTIO NOLLISOd NOLLYNIIAMA.L

YTANNOSYHEd TVNOILONALSNI"NON

Ry A

ALVd INTNINIOddV
NOSVTY AALLOAAAA TVNIORIO NOLLISOd NOLLVNSISTI
*TANNOSYAd TVYNOLLDAYLSNI-NON
“uoneuSisay L10Z/0£/90 9102/10/60 agengue] uSteiog uoslaulg ‘e[eqeZ ezIe)
‘uoneuSisay L10Z/0£/90 600Z/10/60 agen3ue] uSia10] uey3o|N “uoIsald
ALVd INAAILNIOddV
NOSVIY NOLLVNOISTI TVNIOTIO NOLLISOd NOILLVNOISTI
*TANNOSYAd TYNOILLD QU LSNI/SIOLVILSININAY
SIABI] pue SUONBUSISIY [duuosiIJ Jo [eacaddy "4
AMYM 110100

LI0T .@ unp e w—.—maooz ﬁ.nmom
p6'I1  :Iequny 3[npayog

L1-910C TeaA [00YdS
JAVLS TYNOILONYLSNI-NON ANV TYNOILINILSNI ‘SYOLVILSININGY

SHAVIT ANV SNOLLVNDISTY 40 I TNATHIS




MU QL LIUC Y TSSETINETYED L1 YDA L IUANGD NI AGAD U IUITIJIUTS Y =es Qe Seurd

"9ABT [BUOSID] 8102Z/0€/90 — L10Z/10/60 ¥102/10/60 Jurpesy AJIOW ‘ueure)
INTNINIOddV
NOSVId SIALVA JAVIT TVYNIDIIO NOILLISOd AONISHV 4O TAVI]
TINNOSHAd TVNOLLONYLSNI-"NON/TVNOLLDQHLSNI
ILva INTIW.INIOddV
NOSVIY JALLDAAAT TVNIDIIO NOLLISOd NOLLVNDISTA
‘TINNOSYAd TVNOILLOAULSNI-NON
JLvda INITNINIOddV
NOSVId NOLLVNDISTY TVNIDOIIO NOLLISOd NOILVNDISTA
YTINNOSYAd TYNOILLDNALSNI/SYOLVALSININGY
SIABY] pue SuonBUSISIY [JUU0SId] Jo [erorddy V
MUM -1010D
LI0Z ‘9dung  :9je(q Sunasjy preogq
S6°11 Jaqumy 3npsyos

L1-910T TeaX [00Y4dS
VLS TVNOILONYLSNI-NON ANV TVNOILDNYLSNI ‘SYOLVILSININAY

SHAVA'T ANV SNOLLVNIISTY 40 A TNAAHIS




s0piddy IN 2102 ' 8UNMS8INPAYRS L1-S1\STTNAIHIS TYNOILLONULSNI-NON\ATINAIHISSUUOSIadUspIod BIeQ\'S

‘uoreudisal 01 anp uonisod
00°7ET'9VS 1stdesay [, [eoIsAyd ayp [ [jim SLIA[EA Areuoneqold | L107/10/60 1Lsiq 1sidesay [, [eoisAyq 3LIB[BA ‘SHON0T
1LVY ATINCH AdAL aLvda VIV
/AAVIVS R LAUEL INTIWINIOAdV | JALLDTLLT | ADIAWIS SO NN
AMYM 110[0D

LI0Z ‘9dunp  :3)e(q SundSN preog
SIT1 :JaqumN [Mpayds

81-L10T 483X [00YDS Y} 10] SUOBIPUO)) ANPIYIS PUE SILIE[ES X1 O
[FUUO0SIIJ [BUOL}INIISUL-UON

SINAININIOddY 40 A TAATHIS




SCHEDULE OF APPOINTMENTS

Non-Instructional Substitute Personnel
To Fix Salaries and Schedule Conditions for the School Year 2016-17

Schedule Number: 1216
Board Meeting Date:  June 6, 2017
Color: White

The following individuals are appointed conditionally (pending fingerprint clearance) to the substitute list for non-
instructional personnel. The Superintendent is authorized to make assignments from the list.

Last Name First Name Title Rate Remarks
Lewis Kellie Cleaner $9.70 Retroactive to 05/23/2017
Hulslander Steve Custodian $11.93 Effective 07/01/2017

S \Data Folder\Personne\SCHEDULEWON-INSTRUC NONAL SCHEDULES\I6-17 Schedules\June 6, 2017 NI Sub doc



SCHEDULE OF APPOINTMENTS
Non-Instructional Personnel
To Fix Salaries and Schedule Conditions for the School Year 2017-18

Schedule Number: 1217
Board Meeting Date: June 6, 2017

Color: White
Summer Programs

NAME JOB TITLE RATE
Little, Duane Bus Driver $18.20
June Price Bus Driver $19.83
Merchant, Chris Bus Driver $19.64
Honour, Dennis Bus Driver $19.83
Case, Melanie Bus Driver $22.47
Hubbard, Stacy Bus Driver $16.29
McMullin, Rick Bus Driver $22.46
Tinker, Jonathon Bus Driver $16.29
Daniels, Elizabeth Bus Driver $17.34
Condie, Dan Bus Driver $16.29
Yacavone, Mark Bus Driver $19.12
Reardon, Connie Bus Driver $19.64
Burk, Jeannine Bus Driver $17.34
Tyrell, Lori Bus Driver $18.65
Slack, Luisa Bus Aide $12.79
Avery, Heidi Bus Aide $11.41
Graves, Sandra Bus Aide $10.40
Hubbard, Stacy Bus Aide $10.40
Marks, Donna AYV Coordinator $22.14
Bush, Wava Cook Manager $19.61
Norris, Maureen Food Service Helper $12.80
Crosby, Rhoda Cook $12.76
Potter, Gail Food Service Helper $12.80
Root, Betsy Food Service Helper $10.47

S:\Data Foider\PersonneNSCHEDULE\NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SCHEDULES\16-17 Schedules\June 6, 2017 Summer Programs NI Appt.doc



JUP S LLUC Y WU aeuipeyo) LY H1UHEEUD TVNULLJL TALINIUE ] JUSHR DY UeUaseqeep|vy SouUyvy

00°PEL'TYS TVLOL
JUWIAINAL
$ S 13)SBIN 01 anp Aduedea ouepIny %
0r0°‘zs IS SIH peLo Jofasuno)) jooyos | Surpuad-feuoisiaolg | Suiesuno) SHSI
$69°0tS v daig Y} {1 [{Im SRy /10[asunoy)) [0oyos 1ooyas | 120Z/1€/80 L102/10/60 | Areuoneqoid | /lopasuno)) [00YdS JIURW ‘SSON
00°LST'EYS TVLOL
‘uoneugisal
00S$ S JASEN 01 anp KoueoeA
orTIS i€ SIH pein a8en3ue uSai0] sagen3ue| uoylerRN-SHSI
LYP'I¥S g days | o [y [im dunapely | ey /21-L ysiveds ugiasod | 1207/1€/80 L102/10/60 | Areuoneqoid | seBendueudialog | ouljdape] ‘Ajuared
00°¥0€'¥SS TVLOL
‘uoneudisal
00S$ S 49)SBI 01 anp Koueoea
091°7$ ¥S SIH puan) a3en3ue] uddi0 feuoissajoid | safendue SHST
v¥9'ISS IN dayg ay [y (W yeres /21-L ysiuedg udtosod | 0Z0Z/1€/80 |  L10T/10/60 | Areuoneqoid | ,e8enSueT uslaio] Yeses iunse)
00'vEL'VYS TVLOL
$ S JSBIA ‘uorjeudisa1 oy anp | Suipuad-feuoisiaoig
07878 €9 sif pea) | Koueoea isi3ojoyohsd psidojoyohsd {1si3ojoyassd
PIZ'THS 10 dag 3yl [ [[im yereg [ooyos [ooyds | 1207/1¢€/80 L10T/10/60 | Areuoneqold | SHS[/SISO[OYIAS] | YeIeS ‘SYOIOPUOA
00°S6S°EvS TVLOL
$ S J31SBIA JUSWIAINAI O}
0098 ! SIH p81D anp Aduesea ysi[ug [enWL/Z] -L SUV
S66'THS ia dayg | oy iy [ eypuewres | 23enJueT ysi3ugy ysuaug | 120Z/1€/30 L10Z/10/60 | Ateuonreqoid SHS[/ys|3ug | eypueures pIogly
00°S89°LYS TVLOL
00S$ S J9)SBIA “JUSWIAINL 0} jeuoissajold
09L'1S 144 SiH p81D anp Aouesea ysy3uy /1 L suv
STY'sKS 19 dag oy {1y [ s3puudp | aFenSuey ysidug ysySud | 120Z/1€/80 |  L10Z/10/60 | Areuoneqold SHSf/usy3ug |  003yoed Japtuusp
00°000°08% TVLOL
wowuSissy | owmsigyuoneonpy
reroadg [etoadg
JUSURULIDG uo Joyoea], Jo Josiatadng auusyey
fuotreonpy [eroadg V/IN VIN L1QZ/10/L0 81-L10T 9 - M-aid “uosuems
Vauy SUNZ | FALLDAAST Lddv NOILVDO01
AYVTVS SHAVINTIY TNADAA /LYID | TANNIL 80dd ALva 40 AdAL /NOLLISOd ANVN
MMM 11000
L10Z ‘9 dunp :a1e(] SunlesiN pieog
99T :1aquinN] 3[npayds

81-L10¢ Tea [00YIS 34} 10f SUOHIPUOY) S[NPAYDS PUE SILE[ES X1 O
AIVIS TYNOILLONYISNI ANV SYOLVILSININGY
SINANINIOddY A0 T INATHIS




SUR JUS L LUC Y SNl L1100 BIUEHODY  TYVNULLJLIELONIA H IUIdH D\ vWevied depuyg SisUn )

00°185°0SS TVLOL
‘uoreudsal
00S$ S J2JSBI 0} anp AdueoRA uoneanpy
00Z°1$ o€ SIH pein uonesnpy [eroadg JusURULID] [eoadg SHS(/uoneonpyg
188°8¥$ ) dag P Y [ tnf | uotrednpy [eroads [e1ouan | 0ZOZ/1€/80 |  L10T/10/60 | Areuoneqoid [eoads ain[ 3ney
vagav SANT | FALLDAA4T Lddv NOLLVDOT1
AAVTVS SNIVINTY ATIOA] /LATD a0ud ALVa 40 1dAL /NOLLISOd TNVN




7L

SCHEDULE OF APPOINTMENTS
ELEMENTARY & SECONDARY SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS/TUTORS 2016-17

Schedule Number: 2463
Board Meeting Date: June 6, 2017
Color: Yellow

The following individuals are emergency conditional appointments to the substitute teacher list. The
Superintendent is authorized to make assignments from the list.

Name Title List Rate Remarks
lvie, Peggy Substitute Teaching Assistant B $80.00 Retroactive to 04/24/2017
Hoyt, Eileen Tutor $37.50 Retroactive to 05/19/2017

* Substitutes appointed above are automatically eligible to substitute as Teaching Assistants.
S:\Data Folder\PersonneNSCHEDULEMNSTRUCTIONAL SCHEDULES\16-17 Schedules\June 6, 2017 InSub.doc



